
 
 

 
 

CORPORATE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 
 
7 July 2020 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
 
A Meeting of the Corporate Scrutiny Committee will be held in Online Meeting on 
Wednesday, 15th July, 2020 at 6.00 pm. Members of the Committee are requested to 
attend. 
 
 
Yours faithfully 
 

 
Chief Executive 
 

A G E N D A 
 

NON CONFIDENTIAL 
 
 
1 Apologies for Absence  

2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 5 - 10) 

3 Declarations of Interest  

N0N-CONFIDENTIAL



 To receive any declarations of Members’ interests (personal and/or 
personal and prejudicial) in any matters which are to be considered at this 
meeting. 

 
When Members are declaring a personal interest or personal and 
prejudicial interest in respect of which they have dispensation, they should 
specify the nature of such interest.  Members should leave the room if they 
have a personal and prejudicial interest in respect of which they do not 
have a dispensation.   

 

4 Chair's Update  

 To receive an update from the Chair. 
 

5 2020/21 Forward Plan  

 Discussion item – link to Forward Plan 
 
http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=120&RD=0&bcr=1 
 

6 Capital Outturn Report (Pages 11 - 24) 

 To consider the Report of the Portfolio Holder for Assets and Finance 
 

7 Member Training Update (Pages 25 - 38) 

 (Report of the Executive Director, Organisation) 
 

8 Corporate Scrutiny Committee Work Plan (Pages 39 - 40) 

 To consider the Committee’s Work Plan 
 

 
   ______________________________________ 
 
Access arrangements 

If you have any particular access requirements when attending the meeting, please contact 
Democratic Services on 01827 709267 or e-mail democratic-services@tamworth.gov.uk. We can 
then endeavour to ensure that any particular requirements you may have are catered for. 
 
Filming of Meetings 

The public part of this meeting may be filmed and broadcast.  Please refer to the Council’s 

Protocol on Filming, Videoing, Photography and Audio Recording at Council meetings which can 

be found here for further information. 

The Protocol requires that no members of the public are to be deliberately filmed.  Where 

possible, an area in the meeting room will be set aside for videoing, this is normally from the front 

of the public gallery.  This aims to allow filming to be carried out whilst minimising the risk of the 

public being accidentally filmed.    

http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=120&RD=0&bcr=1
mailto:democratic-services@tamworth.gov.uk
https://www.tamworth.gov.uk/sites/default/files/councillors_docs/TBC-Filming-Protocol.docx


If a member of the public is particularly concerned about accidental filming, please consider the 

location of any cameras when selecting a seat. 

FAQs 

For further information about the Council’s Committee arrangements please see the FAQ page 

here 

 
 
 
 
To Councillors: T Jay, B Price, R Bilcliff, S Goodall, M Oates, Dr S Peaple, P Standen, 

M Summers and P Thurgood  

https://www.tamworth.gov.uk/council-meetings-faqs


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

1  
 

 
 
 
 
 

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE 

CORPORATE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
HELD ON 17th JUNE 2020 

 
 

 
PRESENT: Councillor T Jay (Chair), Councillors R Bilcliff, S Goodall, 

M Oates, Dr S Peaple, P Standen, M Summers and P Thurgood 

 

  

 

CABINET Councillor Daniel Cook 

 

 
The following officers were present: Anica Goodwin (Executive Director 
Organisation), Lynne Pugh (Assistant Director Finance), John Day (Knowledge, 
Performance and Insight Co-ordinater), Tracey Pointon (Legal Admin & 
Democratic Services Manager) and Jo Hutchison (Democratic Services, Scrutiny 
and Elections Officer) 
 
 
Apologies received from: Councillor(s) B Price 
 
 
 

1 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 5th February 2020 were approved as a 
correct record. 
 
(Moved by Councillor Dr S Peaple and seconded by Councillor S Goodall) 
 

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

3 CHAIR'S UPDATE  
 
The Chair thanked Officers for the training which had been provided to facilitate 
the transition to remote meetings.  The Chair also thanked members for attending 
the training provided as well as joining this first remote meeting of the Corporate 
Scrutiny Committee. 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



Corporate Scrutiny Committee 17 June 2020 

 

 

2 
 

The Chair welcomed the two new members of this Committee; Councillors 
Michael Oates and Peter Thurgood. 
 
The Chair reminded members that whilst the agenda and reports for the March 
2020 Corporate Scrutiny Committee meeting were published, the meeting was 
cancelled.  Under the work plan item later on the agenda the Chair reported that 
the Committee would look at this year’s possible items of business.  The Chair 
suggested that following this meeting, he would request that Democratic Services 
re-circulate to members the Review of Council and Cabinet Decisions since May 
2019 Report which was attached to the March agenda and the Chair asked that 
members raise with him (ahead of the July Committee meeting) any specific 
decisions which they would like to be brought forward onto this Committee’s 
agenda over the coming year. 
 
The Chair further reminded members that the draft Annual Report of this Scrutiny 
committee was circulated to all members of the Committee in May 2020 for 
comment.   The Chair reported that the intention was that this Report would be 
received by full Council in July.  The Chair therefore requested that if members 
had any final comments on that report, to provide them to the Chair by 30th June 
2020. 
 

4 FORWARD PLAN  
 
The Committee considered the Forward Plan.  It was suggested that the Capital 
Outturn Report be considered by this Committee at its July Committee meeting. 
 

5 QUARTER FOUR 2019/20 PERFORMANCE REPORT  
 
The Report of the Leader of the Council which provided the Committee with a 
performance update and financial healthcheck was received.   
 
The Chair welcomed the Leader of the Council, Councillor D Cook, and the 
Executive Director Organisation, Assistant Director Finance and the Knowledge 
Performance and Insight Co-ordinator to the meeting. 
 
The Leader of the Council introduced the report and reported that COVID-19 had 
had, and was expected to continue to have, an impact.  Updated forecasts had 
been prepared which modelled the impact on the Council’s finances.  It was 
currently anticipated that income levels would be 10% lower, although at this 
point the Leader reminded members that no one could know the full impact. 
 
The Committee sought and received clarification in the following areas: 
 

1. The strategy for Solway and whether an adjustment in this was required.  
The Leader reported that it was capital which would be allocated to Solway 
and that he considered that the strategy behind Solway would continue to 
be relevant in the current situation. 

2. The impact on the town centre strategy, including property /business 
values, and the interaction with the Future High Street Fund business 
case.  The Leader reported that COVID-19 would be likely to impact on the 
town centre and advice was being taken.  

Page 6



Corporate Scrutiny Committee 17 June 2020 

 

 

3 
 

3. The progress being made on the Customer Portal.  The Executive Director, 
Organisation reported that two priority processes had now moved into full 
testing mode, and that by the Q1 Report there would be likely to be more 
progress to report. 

4. The progress on regeneration work at Tinkers Green and Kerria.  The 
Leader agreed to update members by email as to the current position. 

5. The reasons for the underspend of the budget for the Joint Waste 
Arrangements.  The Leader noted that over successive years there had 
been an underspend and agreed that this was an area where further 
advice would be sought. 

6. The Leader confirmed that the unbudgeted government grant referred to 
was a COVID-19 related grant. 

7. Following a question, the Knowledge, Performance and Insight Co-
ordinator agreed to review the figures set out in the Universal Credit 
summary to ensure that all historic figures were accurately represented in 
the graphs. 

8. The Leader was asked about the updated forecast for the General Fund 
which identified on the central case scenario an impact of £2.5m,  which 
the report indicated would require savings of around £2m per annum 
savings over the next five years, starting immediatley.  The Leader 
confirmed that the council was waiting for the Government’s decision on 
Fairer Funding. 

9. Whether the council’s corporate debt strategy would be revisited in light of 
the financial impacts on residents of COVID-19.  The Leader hoped that it 
would be possible to continue to work within the existing strategy. 

10. The impact on the council’s ICT strategy of the financial pressures and the 
need sometimes to look over a longer time period to see the benefits of IT 
investments. The Leader agreed that this often presented difficulties 
around IT investment and that financial appraisals over a longer period 
could be considered.  It was further questioned whether it was appropriate 
to delay work in respect of the new UPS which was stated to be required. 
The Executive Director, Organisation agreed that whilst there was an 
option to delay looking at the ICT Strategy, she would feedback the 
comments on the new UPS. 

11. Whilst the trend was welcomed, further information was sought on the 
reasons for the flattening off in the figures for rent arrears from universal 
credit claimants.  The assistant Director Finance reported that there was a 
deliberate policy to ensure that the final 2 weeks of the financial year were 
rent free. 

12. Clarification was sought over the reduced income from fees and charges 
amounting to £1.7m.  The Leader referred members to his response to a 
Question at Council on 16 July which provided the requested breakdown. 

13. Clarification was sought on the underspend against the safer and stronger 
communities budget and the Assistant Director Finance reported that this 
had gone into a specific reserve for ear-marked projects. 

14. Whilst there had been reduced income from attractions such as the Castle 
due to the impact of COVID-19, and whilst it remained difficult to know 
when it may re-open, it was suggested that consideration should be given 
to starting to look at future plans for the Castle. 

15. Clarification was sought over the property investment strategy and the 
returns which could be reasonably expected, in terms of both capital 

Page 7



Corporate Scrutiny Committee 17 June 2020 

 

 

4 
 

appreciation and rental incomes.  It was reported that professional advisers 
were appointed in this area and that property funds in which investments 
had been made were of a diversified nature, and that the strategy was to 
deliver longer term returns.  

16. Clarification was sought on: (1) whether the underspend in terms of 
Highways maintenance would be used for Kettlebrook ponds as well as A5 
ponds and (2) treatment of rent receipts at Ankerside.  The Assistant 
Director Finance agreed to circulate a response to members on these 
items. 

17. It was welcomed that the CCTV project had been delivered on time and the 
Leader reported that initial feedback had been positive.  The Leader 
confirmed that this service did not have access to ANPR data. 

18. It was noted that the reporting period for this Performance Report (up to 
end March 2020) meant that this report was not a complete picture of the 
impacts of COVID-19 and that the next report may provide difficult 
information. 

 
 
RESOLVED that the Quarter Four 2019/20 Performance Report be endorsed. 
 
(Moved by Councillors R Bilcliff and seconded by Councillor M Summers) 
 

6 CORPORATE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK PLAN  
 
The Committee considered the Work Plan and discussed the inclusion within it of: 

1. The Capital Outturn Report on the July 2020 agenda 
2. The inclusion of Solway on the August 2020 agenda 
3. Further amendments as considered necessary by the Chair following 

consultation with relevant Officers. 
 
The draft Work Plan is set out below: 
 

 Corporate Scrutiny Work Plan 

Work Plan 2020 – 2021 

TARGET 
MEETING DATE 

SUBJECT MEETING WHEN 
ITEM ADDED TO 

WORK PLAN 

   

May 2020  Parking Toolkit review October 2019 

TBC - June 
2020 

Gungate Masterplan January 2020 

15th July 2020 Capital Outturn Report June 2020 

15th July 2020 Member Training update June 2019 

15th July 2020 Member Support Working group – sub 
group on Member Communications  

 

Page 8



Corporate Scrutiny Committee 17 June 2020 

 

 

5 
 

 
 

 
 

  

 Chair  

25th August 
2020 

Quarter 1 2020/21 Quarterly 
Performance Report  
 

 

25th August 
2020 

Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme 
2021 onwards - revisit 

November 2019 
(date change - 

June 2020) 

TBC - 25th 
August 2020 

The Assembly Rooms – review of 
project 
 

November 2019 

TBC - 25th 
August 2020 

Solway Trading Company update  December 2019 
(date added -June 

2020) 

8th October 
2020 

Review of Legal Services (post 
implementation) 

November 2019 
(date change - 

June 2020)  

10th December 
2020 

Quarter 2 2020/21 Quarterly 
Performance Report  
 

 

3rd February 
2021 

Quarter 3 2020/21 Quarterly 
Performance Report  
 

 

TBC Review of Cabinet decisions over 
previous 12 month period (circulate to 
members post June meeting for 
comment)  

June 2020 

TBC Housing Repairs & Investment 
Contract Review 

November 2019 

TBC Solway Trading Company Update (2x 
per year) 

December 2019 

TBC  Market tender progress Update August 2019 

Quarter 4 2020 Asset Management update  December 2019 

Upcoming Corporate Scrutiny Committee Meetings 

15 July 2020 

25 August 2020 

8 October 2020 

19 November 2020 

10 December 2020 

3 February 2021 

11 March 2021 

Page 9



Corporate Scrutiny Committee 17 June 2020 

 

 

6 
 

 
 

Page 10



CORPORATE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

15 JULY 2020 
 

 
 

REPORT OF THE PORTFOLIO HOLDER FOR ASSETS AND FINANCE 

 
 

CAPITAL OUTTURN REPORT  
 

 

 
EXEMPT INFORMATION 
None 
 
PURPOSE 
The Corporate Scrutiny Committee requested that the Capital Outturn Report, to be 

presented to the Cabinet meeting on 9th July 2020, be brought to this Committee for 

it’s consideration. 

The Cabinet Report is included in full below. 

  

Page 11

Agenda Item 6



 

CABINET 
 

9th July 2020 
 
 

Report of the Portfolio Holder for Assets and Finance 
 
 
CAPITAL OUTTURN REPORT 2019/20 
 
PURPOSE 
 
To advise Members of the final outturn of the Authority’s Capital Programme for 
2019/20 (subject to audit confirmation) and to request formal approval to re-profile 
specific programme budgets into 2020/21. 
 
This report is a key decision due to expenditure in excess of £100k requiring 
approval. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That Cabinet: 
 
1. receive the final outturn position of the 2019/20 capital programme as 

summarised in Appendix A; 
 
2. approve for each of the projects detailed in Appendix B the re-profiling of 

the budget into the Authority’s Capital Programme 2020/21 (total £21.080m); 
and  

 
3. approve that the Building Repairs fund contribution of £0.56m allocated by 

Cabinet to the Assembly Rooms scheme be retained in reserve which will 
mean additional borrowing will be required to fund the outturn for the 
Assembly Rooms scheme. 
 

 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
Progress on the capital programme is reported quarterly to Cabinet and monitored 
on a monthly basis by the Corporate Management Team with project managers 
providing project progress information and a predicted outturn. The outturn for the 
2019/20 capital programme identifies an underspend of £20.797m against the 
approved budget of £50.193m (actual spend £29.395m – a movement of £5k since 
Provisional Outturn).   
 
However, it has been requested that £21.080m (as detailed in Appendix B) of 
scheme spend be re-profiled into 2020/21.  This will result in an overall overspend of 

Page 12



£0.283m for the 2019/20 capital programme. The overspend with regard to the 
Assembly Rooms project is subject to a separate report to be considered by Cabinet. 
It is proposed that the Building Repairs fund contribution of £0.56m allocated by 
Cabinet to the scheme be retained in reserve (it will then be available to support the 
revenue budget, if required) which will mean additional borrowing will be required to 
fund the outturn for the Assembly Rooms scheme, in addition to the financing of the 
overspend. This will mean an associated increase in minimum revenue provision and 
interest costs written down annually over the estimated life of the improvements (as 
indicated by the valuer).  
 

 

General Fund 
The outturn on General Fund capital schemes (including contingency) spend is 
£4.734m compared to a full year budget of £18.912m resulting in an underspend of 
£14.178m.  It has been requested that £15.077m be re-profiled into 2020/21 
meaning that the actual overspend is £0.899m.  
 
 
Housing Revenue Account 
The outturn on Housing Revenue Account (HRA) capital schemes (including 
contingency) spend is £24.662m compared to a full year  budget of £31.281m, 
resulting in an underspend of £6.619m.  It has been requested that £6.004m be re-
profiled into 2019/20 meaning that the actual underspend is £0.615m. 
 

The table below shows the actual  amounts to be re-profiled into 2020/21 compared 
to that forecast at period 11 and, for information, shows the amounts that were re-
profiled into  2019/20. 
 
 

 Budget 
19/20 

Outturn 
19/20 
 

Variance Re-
profile 
to 
20/21 

Under/Over 
spend 
 

P11 
predicted 
re-profile 

Re-profiled 
into 19/20 
 

 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

General 
Fund 

 
18,912 
 

4,734 (14,178) 15,077 899 11,843 17,929 

        

Housing 
Revenue 
Account 

 
31,281 

 
24,662 

 
(6,619) 

 
6,004 

 
(615) 

 
2,553 

 
22,354 
 

        
 

Total 
 
50,193 

 
29,395 

 
(20,797) 

 
21,080 

 
283 

 
14,396 
 

 
40,283 

 

RESOURCE AND VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS 
 
There is a medium risk associated with this report due to the level of requests for re-
profiling of budgets into next financial year.  For the majority of the projects 

Page 13



requesting re-profiling approval, measures have been put in place to address 
ongoing issues, commitments have been placed with suppliers to provide the 
service/ goods, or the works have been completed since 31st March 2020. 
 
As capital funding is very limited for 2020/21 the capital programme will also need to 
be closely monitored. 
 
It should be noted that the following items to the value of £20k have been included in 
the balance sheet as capital items but have been financed from the revenue 
account:- 
 

 

Revenue Purchase 
 ICT Software Revenue 

Purchases £19.985k 

 

REPORT AUTHOR 

Claire Brown - Accountancy Assistant/Jo Goodfellow - Head of Finance  

Page 14



 

 

Appendix A 
 
 

      

GENERAL FUND 

Budget 
Reprofiled 

from 2018/19 
£000 

Budget 
£000 

Actual 
Spend 
£000 

Variance 
£000 

Reprofile 
to 

2020/21 
£000 

Outturn 
£000 

Chief Executive 730 730 11 (719) 719 730 

AD Growth & 
Regeneration 

721 841 301 (540) 529 830 

AD People 174 214 101 (113) 114 215 

AD Operations & Leisure 3,032 3,140 3,441 301 921 4,362 

AD Finance 12,131 12,131 - (12,131) 12,131 12,131 

AD Assets 376 1,091 707 (384) 311 1,018 

AD Neighbourhoods 79 219 173 (46) 46 219 

AD Partnerships 92 92 - (92) - - 

GF Contingency 594 454 - (454) 306 306 

TOTAL GENERAL 
FUND 

17,929 18,912 4,734 (14,178) 15,077 19,811 

              

HOUSING REVENUE 
ACCOUNT 

            

AD Assets 22,254 31,181 24,662 (6,519) 5,904 30,566 

HRA Contingency 100 100 - (100) 100 100 

TOTAL HOUSING 
REVENUE ACCOUNT 

22,354 31,281 24,662 (6,619) 6,004 30,666 

              

TOTAL 40,283 50,193 29,395 (20,797) 21,080 50,476 

         

Page 15



Appendix B 
 
 

        

Directorate 

Budget 
Reprofiled 

from 
2018/19 

£000 

Budget 
£000 

Actual 
Spend 
£000 

Variance 
£000 

Reprofile 
to 2020/21 

£000 

Outturn 
£000 

Comments 

Chief Executive               

Gungate Development 730 730 11 (719) 719 730 No spend likely this financial year 

Directorate Total 730 730 11 (719) 719 730   

AD Growth               

Castle Mercian Trail 576 576 296 (280) 280 576 
Tender for replacement contractor in 
progress. Project not likely to be complete 
until August 2020 

Gateways 139 259 16 (244) 244 259 
Funds for Phase 3 (Corporation St) not 
likely to be spent this year and required to 
be re-profiled 

Cultural Quarter - 
Carnegie Centre 

6 6 - (6) 6 6 No spend likely this financial year 

Cultural Quarter - 
Public Realm 

- - (10) (10) - (10) 
Prior year adjustment for miscoded works 

Directorate Total 721 841 301 (540) 529 830   

AD People               

Replacement It 
Technology 

69 129 84 (45) 45 129 

Remainder of funds for replacement 
devices, also new UPS required which will 
not be progressed until 2020/21, therefore 
budget to be re-profiled 

EDRMS (Electronic 
Document Records 
Management System) 

50 30 - (30) 30 30 

Unlikely to be spent this year, but required 
to be re-profiled to support further 
development of Customer Portal in 
2020/21 

P
age 16



Directorate 

Budget 
Reprofiled 

from 
2018/19 

£000 

Budget 
£000 

Actual 
Spend 
£000 

Variance 
£000 

Reprofile 
to 2020/21 

£000 

Outturn 
£000 

Comments 

Income Management & 
Receipting System 

10 10 10 (0) 0 10 System now live and scheme completed 

New Time Recording 
System 17/18 

15 15 - (15) 15 15 

Priority for HR & Payroll staff is to 
implement upgrade of i-Trent system 
before end March therefore the funds for 
this scheme are requested to be carried 
forward to 2020/21 

GDPR Systems 
Compliance 

- - 1 1 - 1 Outstanding Consultants Fees 

Self Service Customer 
Portal 

30 30 6 (24) 24 30 
Software still subject to final testing, 
remaining budget to be re-profiled 

Directorate Total 174 214 101 (113) 114 215   

AD Operations & 
Leisure 

              

Wigginton Park Section 
Section 106  

10 10 - (10) 10 10 

Plans to deliver scheme in line with 
Wigginton Park Management Plan. Will 
need to reprofile spend into 2020/21 as 
work required is seasonal / weather 
dependant.  

Broadmeadow Nature 
Reserve 

17 17 - (17) 17 17 

Ongoing works to complete management 
plan and HLS agreement. Will need to 
reprofile spend into 2020/21 as work 
required is seasonal / weather dependant.  

Public Open Space 
Section 106 

10 10 - (10) 10 10 
Spend in line with work plan. Will need to 
reprofile spend into 2020/21 as work 
required is seasonal / weather dependant.  

Street Lighting 7 35 2 (33) 33 35 
Works to be delivered in line with 30 year 
project plan 

P
age 17



Directorate 

Budget 
Reprofiled 

from 
2018/19 

£000 

Budget 
£000 

Actual 
Spend 
£000 

Variance 
£000 

Reprofile 
to 2020/21 

£000 

Outturn 
£000 

Comments 

Local Nature Reserves 23 23 - (23) 23 23 

Works ongoing to deliver items from 
management plan for various LNRs. Will 
need to reprofile spend into 2020/21 as 
work required is seasonal / weather 
dependant.  

Community Woodland 
Cycleway 

200 200 1 (199) 199 200 

Variation to design spec to be included 
with Amington Community Woodland 
however, anticipate 12 month delay in 
delivery phase due to new work timeline 
from developer.  

Amington Community 
Woodland 

302 352 15 (337) 337 352 

Consultation and design complete 
however, anticipate 12 month delay in 
delivery phase due to new work timeline 
from developer.  

3G Sports Facility 310 310 117 (193) 193 310 

Agreement with Sport England signed 
work now due to start on site January 
2020 with completion expected early 
2020/21. Will need to reprofile some 
spend into 2020/21 as work required is 
weather dependant and not yet finalised.  

Assembly Rooms 
Development 

2,053 2,083 3,305 1,222 - 3,305 
Further update report to be considered by 
Cabinet as agreed by the Portfolio Holder 

Indoor and Outdoor 
Sports Feasibility 

100 100 - (100) 100 100 

Consultation due to be completed October 
- linked with review of Gungate site and 
strategy for the whole borough so will 
need to reprofile works into 2020/21. 

Directorate Total 3,032 3,140 3,441 301 921 4,362   

P
age 18



Directorate 

Budget 
Reprofiled 

from 
2018/19 

£000 

Budget 
£000 

Actual 
Spend 
£000 

Variance 
£000 

Reprofile 
to 2020/21 

£000 

Outturn 
£000 

Comments 

AD Finance            

Property Funds 8,131 8,131 - (8,131) 8,131 8,131 
Investments planned at p11 did not go 
ahead, remaining budget to be re-profiled.  

Solway Tamworth LTD 
LATC 

4,000 4,000 - (4,000) 4,000 4,000 Budget to be re-profiled 

Directorate Total 12,131 12,131 - (12,131) 12,131 12,131   

AD Assets               

Disabled Facilities 
Grant 

72 722 531 (191) 190 722 

Performance issues have meant that not 
all works in pipeline have been completed. 
There remains sufficient work to take up 
full budget so the remainder will need to 
be reprofiled. 

Agile Working Phase 2 124 114 - (114) 114 114 
Request to re-profile to fund potential 
requirements re Covid 19 recovery 

Energy EFF Upgrade 
Commercial and 
Industrial Properties 

- 75 3 (72) - 3 
Ad hoc budget not expected to be spent in 
full. 

Castle Grounds Toilet 
Refurbishment 

180 180 173 (7) 7 180 
Remaining budget to be carried forward re 
completion of rear office area 

Directorate Total 376 1,091 707 (384) 311 1,018   

AD Neighbourhoods            

Homelessness 
Reduction Act 

30 30 - (30) 30 30 Budget not expected to be spent this year 

CCTV Camera 
Renewals 

49 49 49 - - 49 Spend in 2019/20 in support of CCTV 
service review 

P
age 19



Directorate 

Budget 
Reprofiled 

from 
2018/19 

£000 

Budget 
£000 

Actual 
Spend 
£000 

Variance 
£000 

Reprofile 
to 2020/21 

£000 

Outturn 
£000 

Comments 

CCTV Infrastructure - 140 124 (16) 16 140 
Budget established from Invest to Save 
Capital Contingency in line with Cabinet 
approval 

Directorate Total 79 219 173 (46) 46 219   

AD Partnerships            

Private Sector 
Coalfields Fund 

92 92 - (92) - - Not expected to be spent and to be 
returned to balances 

Directorate Total 92 92 - (92) - -   

GF Contingency            

Gf Contingency 35 35 - (35) 35 35 Not likely to be required 

Cont-Return On 
Investment 

160 20 - (20) 20 20 
£140k released for CCTV investment 
costs  

GF Contingency Plant 
and Equipment 

100 100 - (100) 100 100 

Contingency for plant and equipment 
purchases supported by a business case 
approach - not likely to be required this 
year 

Civil Contingencies 
Technology 17/18 
(Contingency) 

19 19 - (19) - - No longer required 

Refurbishment of 
Marmion House 
Reception 
(Contingency) 

100 100 - (100) 100 100 
Re-profile requested to fund works in 
20/21 

GDPR Compliance 
(Contingency) 

31 31 - (31) 31 31 
To be c/f re potential Advanced s/w costs 
(subject to approval) 

P
age 20



Directorate 

Budget 
Reprofiled 

from 
2018/19 

£000 

Budget 
£000 

Actual 
Spend 
£000 

Variance 
£000 

Reprofile 
to 2020/21 

£000 

Outturn 
£000 

Comments 

Mobile Phone Contract 
(Contingency) 

20 20 - (20) 20 20 
Review underway, but unlikely to be 
released/spent before year end 

Private Sector 
Improvement Grants 
(Coalfields Funding) 

130 130 - (130) - - Not likely to be required 

Directorate Total 594 454 - (454) 306 306   

GENERAL FUND 
TOTAL 

17,929 18,912 4,734 (14,178) 15,077 19,811   

 
 
 
 

       

P
age 21



Directorate 

Budget 
Reprofiled 

from 
2018/19 

£000 

Budget 
£000 

Actual 
Spend 
£000 

Variance 
£000 

Reprofile 
to 2020/21 

£000 

Outturn 
£000 

Comments 

HOUSING REVENUE 
ACCOUNT 

              

AD Assets               

Structural Works - 200 108 (92) - 108 Works done on an ad-hoc basis 

Bathroom Renewals 30 598 569 (29) - 569 
Anticipate underspend at year-end - all 
identified works completed. 

Gas Central Heating 
Upgrades and 
Renewals 

203 739 592 (147) 147 739 
Remaining budget to be re-profiled - 
identified for upgrades to Ankermoor 
communal areas but work not yet issued. 

Kitchen Renewals 36 1,073 1,004 (69) - 1,004 
Anticipate underspend at year-end - all 
identified works completed 

Major Roofing Overhaul 
and Renewals 

- 911 816 (95) 95 911 
Some works still on site and not completed 
at year end due to Covid 19 

Window and Door 
Renewals 

- 649 690 41 - 690 
Anticipate overspend at year-end due to 
recodes from void works 

Neighbourhood 
Regeneration 

- 499 538 39 - 538 
Overspends on projects linked to garage 
sites 

Disabled Facilities 
Adaptations 

24 236 124 (112) 112 236 

Some works remain on site but delayed 
due to COVID-19. The demand remains 
and will need to be completed once 
appropriate. 

Rewire - 262 - (262) - - 

It was anticipated that there would be a 
transfer of costs from the repairs budget, it 
has not been possible to identify large 
scale electrical works arising. 

P
age 22



Directorate 

Budget 
Reprofiled 

from 
2018/19 

£000 

Budget 
£000 

Actual 
Spend 
£000 

Variance 
£000 

Reprofile 
to 2020/21 

£000 

Outturn 
£000 

Comments 

CO2 / Smoke Detectors - 64 53 (11) - 53 All identified works completed 

Insulation - 18 - (18) - - 
Ad hoc spend according to identified need 
- not expected to be spent 

Strode House Car Park 
and Garages 

171 171 23 (148) - 23 
All works complete and no further costs 
due. 

Renew High Rise Lifts 280 280 21 (259) 243 264 

Old project still on site, new lifts won't 
commence until next year. £16k to offset 
overspend on High Rise Lift Renewals 
2012 

High Rise Lift Renewals 
2012 

158 158 174 16 - 174 
Scheme now completed - minor 
overspend to be offset by Renew High 
Rise Lifts 

Fire Upgrades To Flats 
2012 

1,985 1,985 1,534 (451) 150 1,684 
Need to carry some budget forward to 
complete installations where residents 
denied access. 

Sheltered Schemes - 100 93 (7) - 93 All identified works complete 

Energy Efficiency 
Improvements 

- 70 5 (65) - 5 
Not anticipating spending available 
budget. 

High Rise Balconies 43 43 (15) (58) 20 5 
Minor works to be completed following 
installation of lifts. Credit due to 2018/19 
accruals adjustment. 

 Works to High Rise 
Flats  

863 863 258 (605) 605 863 
Reflects reduced costs due to doors being 
removed from programme, still to be 
completed. 

P
age 23



 Retention of Garage 
Sites  

- 500 321 (179) 179 500 
Projects identified but not completed due 
to delays in consultation and approvals 
arising from Covid 19 

Directorate 

Budget 
Reprofiled 

from 
2018/19 

£000 

Budget 
£000 

Actual 
Spend 
£000 

Variance 
£000 

Reprofile 
to 2020/21 

£000 

Outturn 
£000 

Comments 

Capital Salaries - 200 205 5 - 205   

Tinkers Green 10,753 10,753 8,582 (2,171) 1,796 10,378 
Project progressing and due to complete 
Autumn 2020.Re-profiling figures based 
on latest estimates of final costs 

Kerria Estate Project 6,762 6,762 6,410 (352) 1,068 7,478 
Project progressing and due to complete 
Autumn 2020. Re-profiling figures based 
on latest estimates of final costs 

Regeneration General - 50 (31) (81) 81 50 
Identified for Stonepit project but not able 
to complete due to consultations and 
approvals. 

Other Acquisitions 946 3,996 2,589 (1,407) 1,407 3,996 

Ad hoc spending based on availability of 
property. Some completions still planned 
for April onwards but likely to be delayed 
due to COVID-19. 

Directorate Total 22,254 31,181 24,662 (6,519) 5,904 30,566   

HRA Contingency               

HRA Contingency 100 100 - (100) 100 100 Not likely to be required 

Directorate Total 100 100 0.00 (100) 100 100   

HRA Total 22,354 31,281 24,662 (6,619) 6,004 30,666   

TOTAL 40,283 50,193 29,395 (20,797) 21,080 50,476   

          

P
age 24



CORPORATE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

15 JULY 2020 
 

 
 

REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ORGANISATION 

 
 

UPDATE REPORT ON MEMBER TRAINING  
 

 

 
EXEMPT INFORMATION 
None 
 
PURPOSE 
This report provides an update to the Committee on member training activities since 
March 2020, particularly focussed on the impact and response to COVID-19 from a 
member training perspective.   
 
This update supplements the Member Induction, Training and MemberZone Report 
attached as Appendix 1, which was published with the agenda for the Corporate 
Scrutiny Committee meeting dated 25 March 2020, which was cancelled due to 
COVID-19. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
The recommendations set out in the Report at Appendix 1, as updated below, are 
recommended to Committee for its consideration and recommendation to Cabinet: 
 

1. That the impact of COVID-19 on member training, and in particular on the 
need to deliver training (online only) for the use of new IT systems and new 
processes to successfully deliver remote meetings, be recognised.  This 
included the delivery for all Councillors as well and focussed training for 
Chairs and Vice-Chairs by an external trainer as well as extensive internal 
training.  

2. That the member induction programme for 2021/22 to be reviewed, 
updated and implemented, noting that: 
2.1 the schedule of induction events should be made available to all 

election agents as early as possible before election day; 
2.2 any initial ICT training of newly elected members should be undertaken 

on a 1-2-1 basis; 
2.3  the importance of the induction training should be emphasised to all 

new members; in particular Safeguarding and Data Protection / FoI.  
3. The member training programme to be reviewed, updated and 

implemented, noting that: 
3.1 the schedule of training sessions should be made available to all 

councillors prior to the start of the municipal year, or as soon as 
reasonably practicable thereafter; 

3.2 options to consider training sessions at alternative times of the day (day 
time / twilight / full day conferences) were not generally supported by 
the members who responded to the survey; 

3.3 shorter and interactive training sessions were recommended where 
practical; 

3.4  refresher IT training is available to all interested members and 

Page 25

Agenda Item 7



members should be encouraged to contact ICT support to arrange 1-2-
1 support; 

3.5 training relevant to specific committee members such as planning, 
licensing and audit & governance should be scheduled to support 
members’ attendance prior to members making decisions at such 
committees; 

3.6 whilst prior to COVID-19, the use of online training as an alternative to 
face-to-face training was generally not supported, the need to find 
alternative delivery methods during COVID-19 has demonstrated that 
some forms of online training are fully effective and should be 
incorporated going forwards; 

3.7 members who responded to the questionnaire considered that the 
training programme covered the correct topics, although some 
members requested more formal training, perhaps utilising external 
training bodies; 

3.8 all members who responded to the questionnaire, felt that the training 
programme had helped them understand their role and responsibilities 
as a Councillor and the work of the Council.  

4. All members to be reminded of the importance of attending training 
sessions and in particular members of the regulatory committees are 
reminded of the importance of attending scheduled regulatory training 
sessions.   

5. Consideration be given as to whether to explore the publication of member 
training records of training sessions on the Council website on the grounds 
of openness and transparency.   

6. New members to be actively encouraged to attend the Local Government 
Association regional event for new councillors. 

7. New members will be invited to an introductory meeting with the Leader of 
the Council and the Mayor. 

8. Members to be encouraged to access and use MembersZone regularly 
which will continue to be updated and the content widened. 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The organisational response to Covid-19 was immediate and comprehensive.  As the 
organisation agreed an immediate new objective to focus on -“To ensure those 
most vulnerable in the community receive services they require and to ensure 
that basic services are sustained”, new ways of working were quickly established. 
 
The ICT Team were immediately focused on the demand for new technology 
particularly that of video conferencing.  Some teams were already using Microsoft 
Teams (via office 365 licencing) and this product was quickly rolled out for use in 
daily Council business.   In addition, whilst legislation was awaited to allow statutory 
Council meetings to be held remotely, work started to consider options and develop a 
deliverable strategy.   
 
Once relevant legislation was implemented and external guidance was available 
members of Democratic Services and ICT team together with the Monitoring Officer, 
commenced testing and developing guidance and protocols, consistent with the 
Council’s Constitution, that would see the introduction of the use of on-line remote 
Council and Committee meetings.  This new system (Teams Live Event) now allows 
remote Council and Committee meetings to be held in accordance with the 
legislation, and with the added benefit of allowing members of the public to view such 
meetings remotely. 
 

Page 26



To date four remote meetings have taken place; full Council, two Planning 
Committee meetings and a Corporate Scrutiny Committee meeting.  Numbers of 
viewers of these meeting has been up to 50. 
 
To support Officers and Councillors in active participation in such meetings, the 
following activities have been undertaken: 
 

1. 22 Members have received new laptops and associated equipment. All 
Members have also been migrated to Office 365 giving them more flexibility 
accessing email and improved integration with Microsoft Teams;  

2. All Councillors were invited to online training in small groups to assist 
Councillors utilising Microsoft Teams on their electronic device; 

3. A detailed document providing member guidance for Remote Meetings’ best 
practice document was produced by Democratic Services and provided to all 
Councillors in May 2020, which clarified the detailed procedures (and 
etiquette) for a remote meeting world where the meetings are streamed live on 
the website. 

4. A full training programme to support Councillors and Officers in their roles at 
remote meetings has been developed, which includes: 

a) providing an overview of how to access the Agenda and reports 
electronically before and during remote meetings, and using split 
screens where necessary; 

b) providing training (through Teams) either together with other Members, 
or on a one-to one basis, on how to join and most effectively participate 
in remote meetings, including best practice advice on remote (online) 
meeting etiquette, and what to do in the event of technological failure; 

c) focussed coaching for the Mayor, Deputy Mayor and the Chairs and 
Vice-Chairs of Committees, in light of meetings being held remotely - 
this training was delivered by an external provider; 

d) practice (mock) Council and Committee meetings organised using 
Teams to develop familiarity with the systems ahead of the first formal 
remote meetings commencing in June 2020 as well as the creation of 
supporting documentation on a specific meeting by meeting basis to 
support both the Chairs and all members in the new remote meeting 
environment;  

5. MembersZone updated to raise awareness and to include communications 
and training materials developed by the Local Government Association and 
other resources; 

6. During remote meetings additional Democratic Services and ICT support has 
been available to support members in the new ways of working and to 
minimise any technical difficulties. 

 
In summary, the focus in terms of member training over the last four months has 
shifted to support the overall response of the organisation to COVID-19 and the 
challenges presented.  As the local elections were postponed for a period of 12 
months there has been no requirement for member induction.   
 
Going forwards, the already developed Member Induction Programme is currently 
being reviewed in readiness for next year’s member intake.  The review will 
incorporate lessons learned from the previous 12 months.  The ongoing member 
training programme is also being reviewed in light of the new ways of working and 
the feedback previously received to ensure continued delivery of member training. 
 
 

Page 27



OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
In formulating the recommendations contained in this report, member’s views were 
surveyed in February 2020 and these views were taken into account.  Since March 
2020 and the launch of remote meetings, members views have been further sought 
and again taken into account in this report’s recommendations.  
 
RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 
Existing staff resources from Democratic Services, HR, ICT, PR and 
Communications and across the Council have been fully utilised to support the 
implementation of the member induction programme, training programme and roll-out 
and updating of MembersZone and the additional ICT support to members.   
 
Significant additional resources were also required to support the delivery of online 
remote meetings from Democratic Services, HR and ICT in particular. The new 
laptops for members were purchased from the Member Device Refresh capital 
budget. 
 
Consideration may need to be given to the member training budget for 2020/21.  The  
full year budget for member training in 2020/21is £3k, and £1.5k has already been 
spent to date.   
 
LEGAL/RISK IMPLICATIONS BACKGROUND 
None. 
 
EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
None. 
 
SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS 
None 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION   
 
REPORT AUTHOR 
Jo Hutchison, Democratic Services, Scrutiny and Elections Officer 
Anica Goodwin, Executive Director Organisation 
 
LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Report to Cabinet, 25 February 2019 
Report to Cabinet, 11 April 2019 
Report to Corporate Scrutiny Committee, 10 July 2019  
Report to Cabinet, 26 September 2019 
 
 
APPENDICES 
Appendix 1 – Report on Member Induction, Training and MembersZone published on 
the agenda of the cancelled 25 March 2020 Corporate Scrutiny Committee. 
 

Page 28



1 
 

CORPORATE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

WEDNESDAY, 25 MARCH 2020 
 

 
 

REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ORGANISATION 

 
 

REPORT ON MEMBER INDUCTION, TRAINING AND MEMBERSZONE  
 

 
EXEMPT INFORMATION 
 
None 
 
PURPOSE 
 
This report provides an update to the Committee on: 

 Feedback received from the Member Induction programme delivered at the 
start of this municipal year as agreed by the Committee at its meeting in July 
2019; 

  The Member Training  programme which has been delivered during this 
municipal year, as well as feedback from Members on this training; 

 Feedback on Members’ utilisation and views on MembersZone. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
The Committee is requested to consider the following, and where appropriate make 
recommendations to Cabinet: 

 
1. The member induction programme for 2020/21 to be reviewed, updated 

and implemented, noting that: 
1.1 the schedule of induction events should be made available to all 

election agents as early as possible before election day; 
1.2 any initial ICT training of newly elected members should be undertaken 

on a 1-2-1 basis; 
1.3  the importance of the induction training should be emphasised to all 

new members; in particular Safeguarding and Data Protection / FoI.  
2. The member training programme for 2020/21 to be reviewed, updated and 

implemented, noting that: 
2.1 the schedule of training sessions should be made available to all 

councillors prior to the start of the municipal year, or as soon as 
reasonably practicable thereafter; 

2.2 options to consider training sessions at alternative times of the day (day 
time / twilight / full day conferences) were not generally supported by 
the members who responded to the survey; 

2.3 shorter and interactive training sessions were recommended where 
practical; 

2.4  refresher IT training is available to all interested members and 
members should be encouraged to contact ICT support to arrange 1-2-
1 support; 

2.5 training relevant to specific committee members such as planning, 
licensing and audit & governance should be scheduled to support 
members’ attendance prior to members making decisions at such 

Page 29



2 
 

committees; 
2.6 the use of online training as an alternative to face-to-face training was 

not generally not supported; 
2.7 members who responded considered that the training programme 

covered the correct topics, although some members requested more 
formal training, perhaps utilising external training bodies; 

2.8 all members who responded to the question, felt that the training 
programme had helped them understand their role and responsibilities 
as a Councillor and the work of the Council.  

3. All members to be reminded of the importance of attending training 
sessions and in particular members of the regulatory committees are 
reminded of the importance in attending scheduled regulatory training 
sessions.   

4. Consideration be given as to whether to recommend that member training 
records of training sessions attended be published on the Council website 
on the grounds of openness and transparency.   

5. New members to be actively encouraged to attend the Local Government 
Association regional event for new councillors. 

6. New members will be invited to a meeting with the Leader of the Council 
and the Mayor. 

7. Members to be encouraged to access and use MembersZone regularly 
which will continue to be updated and the content widened. 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
During 2018/19 the Committee set up working groups to address support for new and 
existing members, which split into three sub-groups covering: 
 

 Member induction 

 ICT Support to members; and 

 Information exchange with members 
 
The Member induction and ICT support for members sub-group completed their work 
and made recommendations to Cabinet in February and April 2019. Following this, 
arrangements were rolled out at the start of the 2019/2020 municipal year to ensure 
a comprehensive induction programme was available to the 10 newly elected / re-
elected members as well as ensuring that arrangements were in place to roll out 
appropriate ICT resources to those newly elected members who required it.  A report 
to this Committee was received on these matters in July 2019 and an action to 
provide feedback from the newly elected / re-elected Councillors on their induction 
programme was agreed, and which this report addresses. 
 
The work of the information exchange with members sub-group was deferred whilst 
further time was given to the implementation of MembersZone and to allow 
consideration of members’ views on this implementation.  It is intended that this sub-
group would then determine their next steps, and any other areas where further work 
may be required.  As a separate piece of work, a small project team has been formed 
comprising Councillors Dr S Peaple and S Goodall, the Executive Director 
Organisation and the Executive Director Communities to agree the further work 
required in order to further improve the dissemination of information to ward 
members.  This project team has met and the plan for this work is ongoing and has 
been fully consulted on and agreed by the team. 
 
 

Page 30



3 
 

1 Feedback on Member Induction 
 
An interim update on member induction was received by this Committee in July 2019. 
 
A survey was issued to the 10 newly / re-elected Councillors in August 2019 and 
responses were received from only 5 members.   
 
The results from the survey responses can be summarised as follows: 
 

No. Question area Results RAG  Notes / Actions 

1 Communication with candidates re 
Induction programme dates pre-
election 

 Ensure for 2020 
that Induction dates 
are made available 
to all candidates 

2 Initial meetings with new councillors 
 

  

 2a Key Council Officers   

 2b Leader & Mayor  A majority of 
responders were 
not introduced to 
the Leader or Major 

3 Induction training (face-to-face)   

 3a Attendance levels  High attendance 
levels amongst 5 
responders to 
survey 

 3b Welcome – Vision overview session  Positive feedback 

 3c IT Training sessions  Implement 1-2-1 IT 
training 

 3d LGA Event – Hitting the Ground 
Running  (Birmingham) 

 Positive feedback  

 3e Data Protection and FoI training 
session 

 Positive feedback 

 3f Safeguarding training sessions  Positive feedback 

 3g Member Code of Conduct 
Standards 

 Positive feedback 

4 Induction training (online) 
 

  

 4a Completion levels  Mixed completion 
rates for online 
training amongst 
responders 

 4b Data Protection online  Positive feedback 

 4c Freedom of Information  Positive feedback 

 4d Cyber-Security  Positive feedback 

 4e Safeguarding  Positive feedback 

5 Provision of IT Devices  A responder 
reported a problem 
with the  IT device 
issued 

6 IT Support  Positive feedback 

7 Tour of Marmion House  More time to be 
spent on 2nd Floor 

Page 31



4 
 

8 MembersZone  Positive feedback 

9 Overall view of Induction 
programme 

 Positive, although 
acknowledgement 
that some issues 
need to be learnt 
over time.  

10 Amount of formal training provided  No additional 
formal training 
requested 

 
All feedback will be taken into account in preparing the 2020/21 Member Induction 
programme, as set out in the recommendations above. 
 
2. Member Training Programme 
 
A detailed Member Training programme was launched at the start of the municipal 
year and regularly updated with new events throughout the municipal year.  The 
content of the programme was designed by looking at previous training provided in 
the Council, as well as the best practice which was followed at other councils.  All 
training was open to all members, although in some areas the training was 
highlighted as essential for members of some committees (such as planning, 
licensing and audit and governance). 
 
All members had access to the latest version of the Training programme through 
MembersZone. 
 
The 2019/20 programme covered the following topics: 
 

1. Planning training (essential for Planning Committee members however open 
to all other members) 

2. Licensing training (essential for Licensing Committee members however open 
for all other members) 

3. Safeguarding training (essential for all members) 
4. Members Code of Conduct training (essential for all members) 
5. Briefing for Councillors on Health Service Commissioning (recommended for 

all Health & Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee members and open to all 
members) 

6. Chief Executive Office Briefing (meet the team) (essential for all members) 
7. Staffordshire Police Briefing (open to all members) 
8. Keeping Safe – Health & Safety and Lone Working and HAT Policy 

Awareness (essential for all members) 
9. Organisation (meet the team) (recommended for all members) 
10. Equality & Diversity training (recommended for all members) 
11. Finance (meet the team) (essential for all members) 
12. Primary Care Briefing  (open to all members) 
13. Audit & Governance Committee training (essential for all members however 

open to all other members) 
14. Communities (meet the team) (recommended for all members) 
15. Treasury Management (Link Asset Services) (open to all members) 
16. Members Seminar on Housing Repairs Contract (open to all members) 
17. Capital Strategy (Link Asset Services) (open to all members) 

 
Some members have also attended external training, including scrutiny training and 
training provided by the Local Government Association to newly elected Councillors. 

Page 32



5 
 

 
In February 2020, all members were invited to complete a Survey regarding their 
experience of the Member Training programme and responses were received from 
13 (out of a possible 30) members.   
 
The results from the survey responses can be summarised as follows: 
 

No. Question area Results RAG  Notes / Actions 

1 Communication regarding dates in 
the Training Programme (before the 
start of the municipal year) 

 A majority of 
responders 
requested details of 
training dates 
before the start of 
the municipal year 

2 Members’ awareness that the 
Training programme is on 
MembersZone 
 

 Members are 
aware.  More 
information below 
regarding 
MembersZone 

3 Member training (face-to-face)   

 3a Attendance levels  The attendance 
levels at training 
sessions varied. 
The maximum 
attendance level 
was just over 50%, 
and generally 
attendance 
averaged around 
35% of the 
members   

 3b Planning Committee  Positive feedback 

 3c Licensing training  Positive feedback 

 3d Safeguarding training  Positive feedback  

 3e Member Code of Conduct  Positive feedback 

 3f Health Service Commissioning  Positive feedback 

 3g Chief Executive Office briefing  Positive feedback 

 3h Staffordshire Police Briefing  Positive feedback 

 3i Keeping Safe – health & safety and 
Lone Working and HAT Policy 

 Limited numbers 
fed back on this 

 3j Organisation briefing  Limited numbers 
fed back on this 

 3k Equality & Diversity  Positive feedback 

 3l Finance  Positive feedback 

 3m Primary care Briefing  Limited numbers 
fed back on this 

 3n Audit & Governance training  No feedback 
provided 

 3o Communities  Positive feedback 

 3p Treasury management  Positive feedback 

 3q Members Seminar on Housing 
Repairs Contract 

 Limited numbers 
fed back on this 

 3r Capital Strategy  Limited numbers 

Page 33



6 
 

fed back on this 

4 Current training programme 
coverage 
 

 Over 90% positive 
response 

5 Views on utilisation of online training 
methods 

 75% preferred face 
– to face.  
However, there 
was support for 
online to be an 
option for all 
training provided 

6 Effectiveness of training programme 
in understanding roles & 
responsibilities 

 All responders felt 
the training 
programme had 
helped the 
understanding of 
the councillor role 

7 Amount of formal training  Mixed almost 50/50 
response to 
whether more 
formal training 
required.  Possibly 
use LGA courses 
more. 

6 Views on Refresher IT training  50/50 response on 
whether more 
refresher IT training 
wanted.  
Recommend 
inviting members to 
contact ICT. 

7 Timing of Member Training sessions  Most responders 
appeared to prefer 
6pm start to the 
various other 
options proposed; 
twilight (4-6pm) day 
time, full day 
conferences 

8 Publication of Councillor attendance 
at training courses 

 Mixed response 
(see details below) 

 
Records of member attendance at the training sessions are retained by the HR team.   
 
Members were asked for their view on publishing members’ attendance at training 
sessions on the Council’s website and the response was fairly evenly split (55% in 
favour, 45% against publication).  The reasons in support of publication can be 
summarised as to demonstrate a member’s commitment to learning and taking 
responsibility for own training as well as promoting openness and transparency.  The 
reasons for not publishing include the fact that external training (employment related) 
would not be taken into account, that it may give the appearance that the member is 
not doing their job and this is not the case, and that training is voluntary.  
Consideration of publication of councillor training records is on the Health & 
Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee work plan. 

Page 34



7 
 

 
Members were also asked to provide their views on the training sessions provided 
and comments made included: 

 Keeping training sessions shorter and interactive where possible.  The use of 
case studies / workshops was appreciated in some training sessions; 

 There appeared to be a general preference to keep training face to face in 
order that questions can be asked and answered during the training; 

 Access to the slides and presentation materials was appreciated. 
 
3. MembersZone 
 
MembersZone was developed as an area on the Council’s intranet, where members 
could access relevant information in one single place, and therefore simplify 
communication channels for general information. 
 
MembersZone has the following pages: 
 

 Home – Welcome to MembersZone 

 Members Bulletin - includes Mayoral Diary and Planning Applications, Starters 
and Leavers 

 Contacts -includes key Officer contact details and Organisational Charts 

 FAQs 

 Induction section 

 Training section – which includes the updated Member Training programme, 
together with copies of presentations used (where available) 

 Useful Documents – includes certain key policies, guidance, ward profiles and 
forms which members may need to claim mileage and declare gifts and 
hospitality. 

 
In addition MembersZone has Quick Links to other key areas for members such as 
the Council Meetings agenda and Reports (ModGov), InfoZone for all other Council 
relevant information, the Safeguarding area (with all relevant contact details for any 
safeguarding concerns) and the Council’s external website.  A review of the 
appropriateness of these Quick Links will be undertaken following the feedback 
received. 
 
Data has been collected on the number of hits on each area of MembersZone since 
its launch in June 2019, so that it is possible to understand those areas of most 
interest.  The data collected includes all hits by Councillors as well as by Officers 
(who can also access this area).  The data is shown in Figure 1 below: 
 

Page 35



8 
 

 
Figure 1. 
 
As can be seen from the above data, the home page (where most users will initially 
navigate to), the Members Bulletin and the Training pages appear to be the most 
popular.  It is also worth noting that the use of MembersZone has declined since it 
was first launched. 
 
In addition, in the Member Training survey, members were specifically asked about 
their use of MembersZone. As can be seen from Figure 2 below, the use made by 
the individual members who responded (please note 13 members responded) is 
quite variable, although most members have made some use.  It is unknown how 
much use is made of MembersZone by those members who did not respond to the 
Survey.  
 

    Figure 2. 

Page 36



9 
 

 
Members also provided comments on those areas they found most useful and areas 
of potential future development.  These are summarised below: 
 

 Some members commented that they did not use MembersZone due to the 
fact that it required them to access it via a Council device and/or via using 
remote access software; 

 Some members found all areas useful and reported that they used it to keep 
up to date with meeting dates, committee meeting details, media releases, 
planning applications, mayoral duties and licensing applications; 

 Some members reported that they would like it to include; policy 
documentation, details of planning applications, Licensing applications and an 
updated Officer contact list; 

 One member requested the return of e bulletin.  
 
OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 
In terms of the timing of Member Training and the publication of Member Training 
records, the survey sought member’s views and these have been taken into account 
in the recommendations made. 
 
RESOURCE  AND FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
Existing staff resources from Democratic Services, HR, ICT PR, Communications 
and across the Council have been utilised to support the implementation of the 
member induction programme, training programme and roll-out and updating of 
MembersZone and the additional ICT support to members.   
 
Consideration may need to be given to the member training budget for 2020/21.  The 
current budget for member training in 2019/20 is £3k, and £3.3k has been 
spent/committed (utilising other underspent budgets within the Training & 
Development cost centre).The budget for the next municipal year is £3k. 
 
LEGAL/RISK IMPLICATIONS BACKGROUND 
 
None. 
 
EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
The induction and training programme has been adapted in terms of time, place of 
delivery and method of delivery as well as the officers being able to provide 
additional support to members with specific needs.  
 
SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
None 
 
REPORT AUTHOR 
 
Jo Hutchison, Democratic Services, Scrutiny and Elections Officer 
Ani Goodwin, Executive Director Organisation 
 
LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Report to Cabinet, 26 September 2019 

Page 37



10 
 

Report to Corporate Scrutiny Committee, 10 July 2019 
Report to Cabinet, 25 February 2019 
Report to Cabinet, 11 April 2019 
 
APPENDICES 
None. 
 
 

Page 38



Corporate Scrutiny Work Plan 

Work Plan 2020 – 2021 

TARGET MEETING 
DATE 

SUBJECT MEETING WHEN ITEM 
ADDED TO WORK PLAN 

   

15th July 2020 Capital Outturn Report June 2020 

15th July 2020 Member Training update June 2019 

15th July 2020 Member Support Working group – sub group on Member 
Communications  

 

25th August 2020 Quarter 1 2020/21 Quarterly Performance Report  
 

 

25th August 2020 Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme 2021 onwards - revisit November 2019 (date change 
- June 2020) 

25th August 2020 Solway Trading Company update  December 2019 (date added -
June 2020) 

8th October 2020 (tbc) The Assembly Rooms – review of project 
 

November 2019 

10th December 2020 Review of Legal Services (post implementation) November 2019  
 

10th December 2020 Quarter 2 2020/21 Quarterly Performance Report  
 

 

3rd February 2021 Quarter 3 2020/21 Quarterly Performance Report  
 

 

P
age 39

A
genda Item

 8



 
 

Quarter 4 2020/21 Asset Management update  
 

December 2019 

Dates to be agreed 

TBC  Market tender progress Update August 2019 

TBC  Parking Toolkit review October 2019 

TBC Housing Repairs & Investment Contract Review November 2019 

TBC Solway Trading Company Update (2x per year) December 2019 

TBC Gungate Masterplan January 2020 

TBC Review of Cabinet decisions over previous 12 month period 
(circulate to members post June meeting for comment)  

June 2020 

Upcoming Corporate Scrutiny Committee Meetings 

15 July 2020 

25 August 2020 

8 October 2020 

19 November 2020 

10 December 2020 

3 February 2021 

11 March 2021 

P
age 40


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	6 Capital Outturn Report
	7 Member Training Update
	Appendix 1 Member Training Update

	8 Corporate Scrutiny Committee Work Plan

